



Legislation Details (With Text)

File #: ORD. 2022-179 **Version:** 1 **Name:**

Type: Ordinance **Status:** Adopted

File created: 6/14/2022 **In control:** City Council

On agenda: 6/27/2022 **Final action:** 6/27/2022

Title: To amend City Code §§ 21-50, concerning bid bonds on construction contracts, and 21-68, concerning contracting for professional services by competitive negotiation, for the purpose of reflecting amendments to state law that Va. Code § 2.2-4343(A)(12) requires the City to follow.

Sponsors: Mayor Stoney

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 1. Ord. No. 2022-179, 2. 20220616 Procurement Bonds Presentation

Date	Ver.	Action By	Action	Result
6/27/2022	1	City Council	adopted	Pass
6/16/2022	1	Finance and Economic Development Standing Committee	recommended for approval	
6/13/2022	1	City Council		

To amend City Code §§ 21-50, concerning bid bonds on construction contracts, and 21-68, concerning contracting for professional services by competitive negotiation, for the purpose of reflecting amendments to state law that Va. Code § 2.2-4343(A)(12) requires the City to follow.

THE CITY OF RICHMOND HEREBY ORDAINS:

§ 1. That sections 21-50 and 21-68 of the Code of the City of Richmond (2020) be and are hereby **amended** and reordained as follows:

Sec. 21-50. Bid bonds on construction contracts.

(a) Except in cases of emergency, all bids or proposals for nontransportation-related construction contracts in excess of \$500,000.00 or transportation-related projects authorized under Code of Virginia, Title 33.2, Ch. 2, Art. 2 (Code of Virginia, § 33.2-208 et seq.) that are in excess of [~~\$250,000.00~~] \$350,000.00 and partially or wholly funded by the Commonwealth shall be accompanied by a bid bond from a surety company selected by the bidder that is authorized to do business in Virginia, as a guarantee that, if the contract is awarded

to the bidder, the bidder will enter into the contract for the work mentioned in the bid. The amount of the bid bond shall not exceed five percent of the amount bid.

(b) ~~[For nontransportation-related construction contracts in excess of \$100,000.00 but less than \$500,000.00, where the bid bond requirements are waived, prospective contractors shall be prequalified for each individual project in accordance with Section 21-46. However, the Director may waive the requirement for prequalification of a bidder with a current Class A contractor license for contracts in excess of \$100,000.00 but less than \$300,000.00 upon a written determination made in advance by the City Council that waiving the requirement is in the best interests of the City. The City shall not enter into more than ten such contracts per year.~~

(e)] No forfeiture under a bid bond shall exceed the lesser of:

- (1) The difference between the bid for which the bond was written and the next low bid; or
- (2) The face amount of the bid bond.

~~[(d)]~~ (c) Nothing in this section shall preclude the City from requiring bid bonds to accompany bids or proposals for construction contracts anticipated to be less than \$500,000.00 for nontransportation-related projects or ~~[\$250,000.00]~~ \$350,000.00 for transportation-related projects authorized under Code of Virginia, Title 33.2, Ch. 2, Art. 2 (Code of Virginia, § 33.2-208 et seq.) and partially or wholly funded by the Commonwealth.

Sec. 21-68. Contracting for professional services by competitive negotiation.

(a) *Conditions for use.* Where the cost of professional services is not expected to exceed \$80,000.00 in the aggregate or for the sum of all phases of a contract or project, professional services may be procured in accordance with small purchase procedures adopted in writing by the Director provided such procedures provide for competition wherever practicable. Where the cost of professional services is expected to exceed \$80,000.00 in the aggregate or for the sum of all phases of a contract or project, professional services shall be procured by competitive negotiation as set forth in this section.

(b) *Competitive negotiation; solicitation, discussion and award.* The Director shall issue a written request for proposals indicating in general terms that which is to be procured, specifying the factors that will be used in evaluating the proposal, indicating whether a numerical scoring system will be used in evaluation of the proposal, and containing or incorporating by reference the other applicable contractual terms and conditions, including any unique capabilities, specifications, or qualifications that will be required. Except with regard to contracts for architectural or professional engineering services, the City may include as a factor that will be used in evaluating a proposal the offeror's employment of persons with disabilities to perform the specifications of the contract. In the event that a numerical scoring system will be used in the evaluation of proposals, the point values assigned to each of the evaluation criteria shall be included in the request for proposals or posted at the location designated for public posting of procurement notices prior to the due date and time for receiving proposals. At least ten days prior to the date set for receipt of proposals, the Director shall give public notice of the request for proposals by posting on the City's internet website. In addition, the Director shall publish the notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the city so as to provide reasonable notice to the maximum number of offerors that can be reasonably expected to submit proposals in response to the particular request and may publish the notice on the Virginia Department of General Services' central electronic procurement website. In addition, proposals may be solicited directly from potential contractors. Any additional solicitations shall include certified businesses from a list made available by the Virginia Department of Small Business and Supplier Diversity and shall include minority business enterprises or emerging small businesses, or both, selected from a list made available by the Office of Minority Business Development. The Director shall engage in individual discussions with two or more offerors deemed fully qualified, responsible and suitable on the basis of initial responses and with emphasis on professional competence to provide the required services. Repetitive informal interviews shall be permissible. The offerors shall be encouraged to elaborate on their qualifications and performance data or staff expertise pertinent to the proposed project, as well as alternative concepts. In addition, offerors shall be informed of any ranking criteria that will be used by the Director in

addition to the review of the professional competence of the offeror. The request for proposals shall not, however, request that offerors furnish estimates of man-hours or cost for services. For architectural or engineering services, the Director shall not request or require offerors to list any exceptions to proposed contractual terms and conditions, unless such terms and conditions are required by statute, regulation, ordinance, or standards developed pursuant to Code of Virginia, § 2.2-1132, until after the qualified offerors are ranked for negotiations. At the discussion stage, the Director may discuss nonbinding estimates of total project costs, including, but not limited to, life cycle costing and, where appropriate, nonbinding estimates of price for services. In accordance with Section 21-5 of this Code, proprietary information from competing offerors shall not be disclosed to the public or to competitors. At the conclusion of discussion, outlined in this subsection, on the basis of evaluation factors published in the request for proposals and all information developed in the selection process to this point, the Director shall select in the order of preference two or more offerors whose professional qualifications and proposed services are deemed most meritorious. Negotiations shall then be conducted, beginning with the offeror ranked first. If a contract satisfactory and advantageous to the City can be negotiated at a price considered fair and reasonable and pursuant to contractual terms and conditions acceptable to the City, the award shall be made to that offeror. Otherwise, negotiations with the offeror ranked first shall be formally terminated and negotiations conducted with the offeror ranked second, and so on until such a contract can be negotiated at a fair and reasonable price. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the terms and conditions for multiple awards are included in the request for proposals, the Director may award contracts to more than one offeror. Should the Director determine in writing and in the director's sole discretion that only one offeror is fully qualified or that one offeror is clearly more highly qualified and suitable than any others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to that offeror.

(c) *Architectural or professional engineering services for multiple projects.* A contract for architectural or professional engineering services relating to ~~[construction]~~ multiple projects may be ~~[negotiated]~~ awarded by the City ~~[for multiple projects]~~, provided:

- (1) The projects require similar experience and expertise;
- (2) The nature of the projects is clearly identified in the request for proposals; and
- (3) The contract term is limited to one year or when the cumulative total project fees reach the maximum cost authorized in this subsection, whichever occurs first.

Such contract may be renewable for [~~four~~] three additional [~~one-year~~] terms at the option of the City. Under such contract, (a) the fair and reasonable prices, as negotiated, shall be used in determining the cost of each project performed, (b) the sum of all projects performed in one contract term shall not exceed [~~\$8,000,000.00~~] \$10,000,000.00, and (c) the [~~project~~] fee of any single project shall not exceed \$2,500,000.00. Any unused amounts from [~~the first~~] one contract term shall not be carried forward to [~~the~~] any additional term. Competitive negotiations for such contracts may result in awards to more than one offeror provided (1) the request for proposals so states and (2) the Director has established procedures for distributing multiple projects among the selected contractors during the contract term. Such procedures shall prohibit requiring the selected contractors to compete for individual projects based on price.

(d) *Multiphase professional services contracts.* Multiphase professional services contracts satisfactory and advantageous to the completion of large, phased or long term projects may be negotiated and awarded based on qualifications at a fair and reasonable price for the first phase only, where completion of the earlier phases is necessary to provide information critical to the negotiation of a fair and reasonable price for succeeding phases. Prior to the procurement of any such contract, the Director shall state the anticipated total scope of the project and determine in writing that the nature of the work is such that the best interests of the City require awarding the contract. For purposes of this subsection, “multiphase professional service contract” means a contract for the providing of professional services where the total scope of work of the second or subsequent phase of the contract cannot be specified without the results of the first or prior phase of the contract.

§ 2. This ordinance shall be in force and effect on July 1, 2022.